MEETING
POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE
DATE AND TIME
TUESDAY 10TH JANUARY, 2017
AT 7.00 PM
VENUE
HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ
TO:

MEMBERS OF POLICY AND RESOURCES COMMITTEE (Quorum 3)

Chairman:
Vice Chairman:
Dean Cohen
Tom Davey
Anthony Finn

Councillor Richard Cornelius
Councillor Daniel Thomas BA (Hons)
Sachin Rajput
Joan Scannell
Barry Rawlings
Alison Moore

Alon or-bach
Paul Edwards
Ross Houston

Geof Cooke
Mark Shooter

Arjun Mittra
Reuben Thompstone

Substitute Members
Melvin Cohen
Alan Schneiderman

In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Thursday 5
January at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to Kirstin Lambert; 02083592177
kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached.
Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance
Governance Service contact: Kirstin Lambert; 02083592177 kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk
Media Relations contact: Sue Cocker 020 8359 7039
ASSURANCE GROUP

ORDER OF BUSINESS
Item No

Title of Report

Pages

1.

Minutes of last meeting

5 - 12

2.

Absence of Members

3.

Declaration of Members' Disclosable Pecuniary interests and Non
Pecuniary interests (If any)

4.

Report of the Monitoring Officer (if any)

5.

Public Questions and Comments (if any)

6.

Members' Items (if any)

7.

Future library provision in New Barnet

13 - 54

8.

London Borough Grants Scheme

55 - 62

9.

Committee Forward Work Programme

63 - 74

10.

Any other item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent

11.

Motion to Exclude the Press and Public

12.

Any other exempt item(s) the Chairman decides are urgent

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES
Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets. If you wish to let
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone Kirstin Lambert;
02083592177 kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk. People with hearing difficulties who have a text
phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942. All of our Committee Rooms
also have induction loops.

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the
building by the nearest available exit. You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed
custodians. It is vital you follow their instructions.

You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts.
Do not stop to collect personal belongings
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some
distance away and await further instructions.
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so.

This page is intentionally left blank

Decisions of the Policy and Resources Committee
1 December 2016
Members Present:-

AGENDA ITEM 1

Councillor Richard Cornelius (Chairman)
Councillor Daniel Thomas (Vice-Chairman)
Councillor Dean Cohen
Councillor Tom Davey
Councillor Anthony Finn
Councillor Ross Houston
Councillor Alison Moore

Councillor Alon Or-Bach
Councillor Sachin Rajput
Councillor Barry Rawlings
Councillor Joan Scannell
Councillor Geof Cooke (as substitute)

Apologies for Absence
Councillor Paul Edwards

1.

MINUTES OF LAST MEETING
RESOLVED – That the minutes of the meeting held on 5 October 2016 be agreed as
a correct record.

2.

ABSENCE OF MEMBERS
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Paul Edwards who was substituted
for by Councillor Geof Cooke.

3.

DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND
NON PECUNIARY INTERESTS (IF ANY)
The following interests were declared:
Councillor
Councillor
Ross
Houston

4.

Agenda Item
Item
11
–
Short
term
extension
of
the
Barnet
Group
management
oversight
for
streetscene

Interest declared
Non pecuniary interest as Cllr Houston
is a Council appointed representative
on the Barnet Group Board.

REPORT OF THE MONITORING OFFICER (IF ANY)
There was none.

1

5

5.

PUBLIC QUESTIONS AND COMMENTS (IF ANY)
Details of the questions asked and the published answers were provided with the agenda
papers for the meeting. Verbal responses were given to supplementary questions at the
meeting.
Public comments were received from Ms Wendy Kravetz (on agenda item 7) and Ms
Mary O’Connor (on agenda item 7). A written comment from Ms Maria Banaghan was
also provided with the agenda papers for the meeting.

6.

MEMBERS' ITEMS (IF ANY)
There were none.

7.

DIVING FEASIBILITY STUDY (BARNET COPTHALL LEISURE CENTRE)
Councillor Arjun Mittra spoke on this item, having provided notice to the Chairman in
advance of the meeting.
The Committee considered the report.
A separate vote was taken on recommendations one to five, and recommendation six.
On recommendations one to five being put to the vote, the votes were declared as
follows.
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

On recommendation six being put to the vote, the Committee voted:
For
Against
Abstain

7
5
0

Immediately following the vote Councillor Richard Cornelius moved to refer the item to
the next practicable meeting of Full Council. The reason given for the request to refer the
item was a recognition of significance of the issue and the public interest in the item in
the context of a petition submitted to Council on 28 November 2016 with over 9,000
signatures, due to be considered at 13 December 2016 Council meeting. The motion
was seconded by Councillor Anthony Finn and was unanimously supported by all
Members.
The Committee requested that officers provide additional information on the financial
implications and on the analysis of options as set out in the Diving Feasibility Study, to
be included in the cover report to Full Council.
RESOLVED –

2

6

1. That the item be referred to Full Council.
2. That additional information on the financial implications and on the analysis
of options be included in the cover report to Full Council.
8.

NORTH FINCHLEY TOWN CENTRE AREA FRAMEWORK SPD
The Committee considered the report.
Councillor Rawlings moved that an additional recommendation be included to specify
that throughout the process of developing the SPD there is full consultation with all
stakeholders in the area including ward councillors, traders, landlords and residents. This
was seconded by Councillor Ross Houston and unanimously agreed.
On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were declared as
follows:
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED –
1. That the committee authorise the Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development, to prepare a draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)
for North Finchley Town Centre Area Framework, to come back to Policy
and Resources Committee for approval for consultation and (if considered
appropriate) subsequent adoption.
2. That the development of the SPD include full consultation with all
stakeholders in the area including ward councillors, traders, landlords and
residents.
3. That the committee agree the draft Heads of Terms substantially as shown
in Appendix 2, and delegate authority to the Commissioning Director,
Growth and Development to finalise the detail of the draft Heads of Terms,
sign the Heads of Terms and then negotiate and enter into the Preliminary
Agreement envisaged by the draft Heads of Terms, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee.
4. That the committee note that the draft Heads of Terms and then the
Preliminary Agreement will include exclusivity periods (not to enter into any
other agreement or arrangement with a third party) in relation to the sale or
disposal of the Council's land at North Finchley High Street (exclusivity
period 4 months after signing Heads of Terms, and then 2 years from
signing the Preliminary Agreement, capable of extension in pre-agreed
circumstances, subject to an overall longstop date to be agreed by the
Commissioning Director, Growth and Development, in consultation with the
Chairman of the Assets, Regeneration and Growth Committee).

3

7

9.

BUSINESS PLANNING - MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2017/20 AND
DRAFT BUDGET FOR 2017/18
The Committee considered the report.
The Director of Resources noted an addendum to Appendix C to the report on Capital
programme additions and changes had been tabled. This was duly noted and agreed by
the Committee. The Director of Resources agreed to provide more detail on the Town
Hall hire rates and whether charges are applied per hour.
A separate vote was taken on recommendation four in the report.
On recommendation four being put to the vote, the votes were declared as follows.
For
Against
Abstain

7
5
0

On recommendations 1, 2, 3, 5, 6, 7 and 8 being put to the vote, the votes were declared
as follows.
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED – That the Committee
1. Notes the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) to 2020 as set
out at appendix A and the assumptions underpinning this in section 1.3;
2. Agrees, subject to consultation, to apply a 2% Social Care Precept, to help
fund care for the elderly as set out in section 1.3.3 in 2017/18;
3. Agrees to consult on whether or not a general Council Tax increase of
1.99% as set out in section 1.4.3 should be applied for 2017/18;
4. Agrees that the savings proposals as set out in appendix B, subject to
consultation and equalities impact assessment ahead of setting the final
budget for 2017/18, come back to Policy and Resources Committee in
February 2017 and Full Council for final approval of the 2017/18 budget in
March 2017;
5. Approve the revised fees for events at Hendon Town Hall and weddings and
civil partnerships with immediate effect, as set out in section 1.12 and
appendix D;
6. Agrees the additions and changes to the Capital Programme as set out in
section 1.11 and appendix C;
7. Agrees the process for consultation as set out in section 5.7; and

4

8

8. Agrees the movements in budget in 2016/17 as set out in section 1.10.3
10.

ANNUAL PROCUREMENT FORWARD PLAN
The Committee considered the report.
Officers agreed to clarify the meaning of the contract name “goods and services to
support WLA Transformation Programme” and provide this to Committee members.
On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were declared as
follows.
For
Against
Abstain

7
0
5

RESOLVED – That approval be given to officers to proceed with procurement
activity as presented in the Annual Procurement Forward Plan [APFP] 2017/2018
and where known for 2018/19.
11.

SHORT TERM EXTENSION OF
OVERSIGHT FOR STREETSCENE

THE

BARNET

GROUP

MANAGEMENT

The Committee considered the report.
Cllr Rawlings moved that the recommendation be amended to extend the contract to 30
June 2017 to allow adequate leeway for a decision to be made on the new model. This
was duly seconded and unanimously agreed by all members.
On the recommendations in the report, as amended by the committee, being put to the
vote, the votes were declared as follows.
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED – That Policy and Resources Committee approve the extension of The
Barnet Group Management oversight for Streetscene until 30 June 2017.
12.

DISABLED PERSONS FREEDOM PASS REVIEW
The Committee considered the report.
The Commissioning Director Environment agreed to provide the committee with
information on the proportion of consultation respondents who were blue badge holders.
Committee members commended officers for their work on the review.

5

9

On the recommendations in the report being put to the vote, the votes were declared as
follows.
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED – That the Committee
1. Considers the results of the consultation on the Disabled Persons Freedom
Pass
2. Approves the revised criteria for Disabled Persons Freedom Passes
Applications.
3. Agrees the additional process improvements outlined in section 4 of this
report for the rollout of the new improved process
13.

PENTAVIA RETAIL PARK - PLANNING BRIEF
During consideration of this item Councillor Sachin Rajput declared a non-pecuniary
interest in this item, as his mother lives on Bunns Lane.
The Committee considered the report.
Officers agreed to amend the wording of paragraph 7.8 of the Planning Brief to remove
the word “Lastly” from the first sentence and amend the second sentence to delete the
words “By ensuring appropriate built form (height and massing),” and insert “or built form”
after the words “artificial light”.
Officers agreed to amend the first bullet point under paragraph 1.2 of the Brief to include
the words “homes including” prior to “affordable homes”.
With regard to the issues identified by the Environment Agency outlined in paragraph
4.12 of the Brief, the Committee noted that developers would have responsibility to
consider these issues and address them in the construction method statement at the
application stage.
The Committee sought assurance from the Monitoring Officer that approval of the
Planning Brief would not expose the Council to undue risk. This assurance was duly
given, and the Monitoring Officer agreed to provide the Committee members with further
specific legal advice on this matter following the meeting.
Officers suggested that an additional recommendation could be added to instruct the
Commissioning Director for Growth and Development, in consultation with the Leader, to
agree amendments to the wording of paragraphs 6.16 and/ or 6.17, to further emphasise
that the proposed densities and design proposals for the site should respect surrounding
suburban housing typologies, including that of the properties opposite the site along the
A1/A41 Watford Way. This was duly agreed by the Committee.

6

10

On the recommendations in the report and the additional recommendation noted above
being put to the vote, the votes were declared as follows:
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED –
1. That the Committee note the responses and agree the Council responses
in the Consultation Report attached at Appendix 2.
2. That the Committee instruct the Commissioning Director for Growth and
Development, in consultation with the Leader, to agree amendments to
the wording of paragraphs 6.16 and/ or 6.17, to further emphasise that
the proposed densities and design proposals for the site should respect
surrounding suburban housing typologies, including that of the
properties opposite the site along the A1/A41 Watford Way.
3. That the Committee adopt the Pentavia Planning Brief attached at
Appendix 1.
14.

NORTH CENTRAL LONDON SUSTAINABILITY AND TRANSFORMATION PLAN
The Committee considered the report.
Councillor Helena Hart made a representation to the Committee.
Following consideration the Committee agreed with the comments made at the Health
and Wellbeing Board (appendix 1, section 2.3 of the report) particularly the lack of both
political and resident involvement in the formulation of the Plan. The Committee agreed
that a report should be presented to Council in the name of the Leader, seeking
Council’s endorsement for the Leader to write to the relevant authorities to express
Council’s view on this matter.
On the recommendation noted above being put to the vote, the votes were declared as
follows.
For
Against
Abstain

12
0
0

RESOLVED –
1. That a report should be presented to Council in the name of the Leader,
seeking Council’s endorsement for the Leader to write to the relevant
authorities to express Council’s view on the development of the
Sustainability and Transformation Plan.
7

11

15.

REFERRAL FROM FULL COUNCIL 1 NOVEMBER 2016 - OPPOSITION MOTION
IN THE NAME OF COUNCILLOR MITTRA
Councillor Arjun Mittra made a representation to the Committee.
The Committee considered the report, following which it unanimously:
RESOLVED – That the Committee
1. Ask the Leader of the Council and the Leader of the Opposition to jointly
write to the Secretary of State for Defence, setting out the Council’s
position that we wish to see the UK Parliament approve a final census
questionnaire in 2019, which includes questions concerning our Armed
Forces community, for use in the 2021 Census.
2. Ask the interim Chief Executive to write to the Borough’s three Members
of Parliament, and the Assembly Member for Barnet & Camden, asking
them to also make representations on this matter to the Secretary of
State for Defence.

16.

COMMITTEE FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME
The Committee noted the work programme.

17.

ANY OTHER ITEM(S) THE CHAIRMAN DECIDES ARE URGENT
There were none.

The meeting finished at 9.30 pm

8

12

AGENDA ITEM 7

Policy and Resources Committee
10 January 2017

Title

Future library provision in New Barnet

Report of Commissioning Director Children and Young People
Wards East Barnet
Status Public
Urgent No
Key No

Enclosures

Appendix A – Consultation report on the future library
provision in New Barnet
Appendix B – Equalities Impact Assessment
Chris Munday, Commissioning Director, Children and Young
People and the Director of Children’s Services
Chris.munday@Barnet.gov.uk
0208 359 2858

Officer Contact Details

Val White
Programme Director, Education and Learning
Val.white@barnet.gov.uk
0208 350 7036

13

Summary
This report recommends that the opportunity is taken to re-provide the Partnership library in
East Barnet as part of the proposed new leisure facilities in Victoria Park, due to be
completed in 2019, subject to planning consent.
Residents and library users were consulted on this proposal to co-locate the library with
new leisure and café facilities over an 8 week period from October to December 2016.
Appendix A sets out the consultation responses provided through both a survey and a
number of drop in sessions held in New Barnet and in the library in East Barnet. Through
this consultation process, a number of residents expressed support for the opportunity
whilst others, generally who lived closer to the current East Barnet library location were
less supportive of the proposal.
Overall, in view of the opportunity of the proposal to provide modern, fit for purpose library
facilities co-located with other leisure and café services (with increased footfall) together
with the declining use of the current library in East Barnet and the age and condition of the
current building, it is recommended to proceed with the proposal in order to provide 21st
century library facilities in this part of the borough.

Recommendations
1. That the Policy and Resources Committee note the results of the public
consultation and the Equalities Impact Assessment attached in
Appendices A and B.
2. That the Policy and Resources Committee agree that the Partnership
library in East Barnet be re-located to the new leisure facility at the
Victoria Recreation Ground (subject to planning consent)
3. That the Policy and Resources Committee agree to fund the potential
requirement for up to £500k capital contribution towards the cost of the
new library, to be added to the council’s capital programme for 2017/18.

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

In April 2016, the Council approved the implementation of a new library
strategy that will maintain all 14 sites whilst making significant savings to the
annual budget. Part of this strategy is to also explore opportunities that arise
for libraries to be re-provided in modern, fit-for-purpose facilities. In particular,
the strategy set out that co-locating library services with other services would
be explored where it could help to provide viable, sustainable library services.

14

1.2

The proposal
This report considers an opportunity to re-provide the library services currently
offered at the library in East Barnet in a new, modern facility as part of the
proposed new leisure facility at the Victoria Recreation Ground in New Barnet
(subject to planning consent). The proposal to provide new library facilities in
this part of the borough has arisen from the council’s decision to invest in new
leisure facilities to replace those offered at Church Farm in 2019. All libraries
in Barnet have seen usage fall by more than 25% in the last 10 years,
however the library in East Barnet has seen the greatest reduction in usage of
52% in this time period. The proposal offers a unique opportunity to provide
new facilities co-located with leisure services that are well-used by residents;
projected footfall at the new proposed leisure facility is more than 3 times that
of the current library.

1.3

There are numerous examples of libraries having been successfully colocated with other community facilities, both in London and elsewhere in the
UK. For example, Sutton Council has a library co-located with three other
community-led services, including a leisure centre, now attracting more
visitors, many of whom wouldn’t have otherwise used a traditional, standalone library. Hillingdon Council, likewise, has a library in a building shared
with a leisure centre. Here in Barnet, there are already a number of examples
of libraries successfully co-locating with other facilities; for example with
Customer Services teams at Burnt Oak, Barnet & Southgate College at
Colindale and residential dwellings at South Friern.

1.4

Following formal public consultation from July to September 2015, the Policy
and Resources Committee agreed that the Victoria Recreation Ground in New
Barnet should be the site for the proposed relocation of Church Farm Leisure
Centre. When residents were consulted on the council’s proposals for future
leisure provision in Barnet, 65% of respondents said they would consider
accessing library services from a leisure centre.

1.5

The new leisure centre is due to be completed in 2019 (subject to planning
consent). Under the proposal, until it re-locates, library services will continue
to be offered from the current location in East Barnet. From April 2017, as part
of the wider library strategy, the library in East Barnet will be a community-led
Partnership library. The Partnership library will be part of the wider Barnet
network, with the services delivered by a community-based organisation.
Ongoing financial and professional support from the Library Service will be
provided.

1.6

As part of the wider library strategy, the current library in East Barnet will be
delivered from a smaller footprint from April 2017, whether it remains on the
current site or is relocated to the new proposed leisure facility. The proposed
footprint of the library within the leisure centre is similar to the footprint that will
available in the current library building after April 2017.

1.7

The condition of the current library building in East Barnet means that it is
likely to require significant maintenance and repair investment in future years.
Re-locating to new, purpose built facilities will provide a structure built to
15

modern day standards for comfort and sustainability and will also enable the
sharing of facility costs between services.
1.8

Relocating the library to co-locate with the proposed leisure facility would
enable the council to realise the following benefits:
 Create a modern, fit-for-purpose library facility that meets the needs of the
local community
 Create a sustainable library offer whereby building costs are shared and
footfall is greater than at present
 Avoid spending extensive capital funding on refurbishing the current site

1.9

Proposed future library location

1.9.1 The proposed future site for library services in the New Barnet area is
0.9miles north-west from the existing building in East Barnet. There is a direct
bus route (number 384) from Crescent Road near the current library to Lawton
Road by the vehicle entrance to the proposed leisure centre, a journey taking
approximately 10minutes. In addition to the 384, there are a number of other
bus routes within a 5 – 10 minute walk of the proposed future location:
 383 - The Spires to Woodside Park Station
 307 - Barnet Hospital to Brimsdown Station
 184 - Chesterfield Road to Turnpike Lane Station or Victoria Road
 326 - The Spires to Brent Cross Shopping Centre
 626 - Dame Alice Owen’s School to Finchley Central Station or North
Finchley Bus Station.
New Barnet train station is approximately a 10 minute walk away with
connections into London and Welwyn Garden City.
The map overleaf indicates the current and proposed future location for the
library.

16

1.9.2 Relocating the library to the new premises within the leisure centre would
provide brand new library facilities with lower running costs for the Partnership
Library organisation in addition to reduced maintenance costs for the council.
In addition to the new location providing co-located leisure facilities, there will
also be a cafe on site and more parking than at the present library site.
1.10

Consultation

1.10.1 Residents were consulted on the proposal to relocate the library over an 8
week period from 24 October to 19 December 2016. The consultation was
published on Engage Barnet http://engage.barnet.gov.uk together with a
consultation document which provided detailed background information about
the proposal for relocating the library. Respondents’ views were gathered via
an online survey. Paper copies were also made available in the current
Library in East Barnet and on request. Six drop-in sessions were held at the
current library site in addition to venues in the vicinity of the proposed future
location.
1.10.2 Analysis of the questionnaire responses demonstrated that just under half of
residents supported the opportunity whilst others, generally those who
currently walked to the current library building, were less supportive of the
proposal. Twenty three individuals agreed with the proposal to re-locate and
re-provide the library and 26 preferred for the library to remain in its current
location and building. Three did not know. Respondents who welcomed the
proposal generally cited improved location for themselves or their families to
make use of the library services, and the benefits to them and other residents
of co-locating multiple services on one site.

17

Respondents who preferred for the library to remain in its current location and
building most commonly cited proximity of the current library building to their
home as the reason.
1.10.3 Residents were also asked to give reasons why they would be likely or
unlikely to use the library should it move to the proposed leisure centre.
Twenty seven out of 52 respondents said they would be very likely or fairly
likely to use the library. Six individuals, whilst disagreeing with the proposal,
said they would be likely to use the library in its new location. Of those that
were likely to use the library, the main reasons cited were proximity to
residence or place of work and intention to use the library when using other
facilities at proposed new leisure centre. Those that were unlikely gave
increased inconvenience and increased distance to travel as the main
reasons.
1.10.4 The reaction of residents at the face-to-face drop-in sessions also varied
although having had an opportunity to see the plans and talk to officers about
the potential opportunities for co-locating services, many appreciated the
advantages associated with the relocation and some were excited by the
opportunity to undertake numerous activities at one venue in the future.
1.10.5 Full results of the consultation can be found in Appendix A.
1.11

Conclusion and recommendation on the proposal to re-locate and rebuild East Barnet Partnership Library

1.11.1 Colindale Library has recently been re-located and rebuilt in brand new
premises and a similar scheme is nearing completion for Church End Library.
The council is keen to pursue opportunities to replace poor condition library
facilities with brand new library premises when the opportunity arises and it is
cost effective to do so. The proposal set out in this report presents an
opportunity to provide brand new library facilities in New Barnet through relocation of the current library within the overall project to provide new leisure
facilities. Overall, residents who responded to the questionnaire were fairly
evenly split as to supporting/not supporting the proposal.
1.11.2 The current library building in East Barnet is likely to require significant
investment in order to successfully offer library services in the longer term.
The proposal to provide a new library within the new leisure centre in the
Victoria Recreation Ground (subject to planning) offers an opportunity to
provide modern, fit for purpose library facilities co-located with other services
in this part of the borough bringing significant benefits for residents and library
users. Whilst some residents have expressed a preference for ‘no change’,
given the declining use of the library in East Barnet, the age and condition of
the current building and the unique opportunity to co-locate the library with
leisure and café facilities with increased footfall, it is recommended to proceed
with the proposal in order to provide 21st century library facilities in this part of
the borough.

18

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The reasons for the recommendation are set out in the paragraphs above.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

The alternative to relocating the library into new modern fit for purpose
premises would be for it to remain in situ. The library in East Barnet has seen
the greatest reduction in usage of all Barnet libraries and turning down this
unique opportunity to co-locate with other well used services is not
recommended.

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

The leisure centre is due for completion in 2019 therefore, if agreed, the
library would re-locate in line with the leisure centre opening.

4.2

Programme of implementation:
 Internal configuration of library space agreed according to timescales set
by leisure centre development project.
 Procurement of furniture/shelving provider.
 Relocation of the library space.
 Further decision will be required on the future of the current East Barnet
Library site – options will be considered by the council’s Asset,
Regeneration and Growth Committee.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The Corporate Plan 2015-20 sets out the following priorities for Barnet:
 responsible growth and regeneration – revitalising communities and
providing new homes and jobs whilst protecting what residents love
about the borough, such as its green spaces, and generating local
revenue as Government funding reduces to zero.


managing demand – working across the public sector and with residents
to prevent problems rather than just treating symptoms.



transforming services – redesigning services to make them more intuitive
and integrated, and more efficient to deliver.



more resilient communities – working with residents to increase selfsufficiency, reduce reliance on statutory services and tailor services to
their needs.

5.1.2 The vision for the Library Service is to provide a service that is in tune with the
changing lifestyles of our residents. Libraries are recognised as a universal
19

and unique service, offering learning opportunities from the early years and
through retirement. This includes maintaining a service that can withstand
current and future financial challenges and safeguard services for vulnerable
people.
5.1.3 For residents, co-locating library services with well-used leisure facilities will
mean easier access to multiple services in one place. These services support
the vision and objectives of one another through aiming to improve both the
physical and mental health and wellbeing of residents, thus also supporting
the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Barnet.
5.1.4 The relocation of the library would enable residents to access highly valued
leisure and library facilities on one site whilst driving efficiencies for the council
by having a single, modern, fit-for-purpose centre and supporting the priorities
of the Corporate Plan
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

5.2.1 The construction of the library space within the new leisure centre will be
funded through the overall construction cost of the centre. There will be some
additional costs in providing library specific requirements including, for
example fixtures and fittings, up to a maximum of £500k. It is proposed that
this is an addition to the council’s capital programme for 2017/18.
5.2.2 IT hardware will be transferred from the current site, however some resource
from IT will be required to design and fit the cabling in the new library space.
The cost of this will be included within the £500k capital contribution referred
to above.
5.2.3 There will be a requirement to procure a specialist provider to design and fitout the internal space
5.2.4 Should the re-location proceed, options for the future use or disposal of the
vacated library building will be prepared and presented to the Asset,
Regeneration and Growth Committee for consideration.
5.3

Social Value
The social value implications, in accordance with the Public Services
(Social Value) Act 2013, are being considered as part of the procurement
process to secure a strategic partner to deliver the council’s new leisure
centres and school buildings.

5.4

Legal and Constitutional References

5.4.1 The Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964 provides a general duty for
library authorities. Section 7 makes it a duty to provide a comprehensive and
efficient library service for the borrowing of books and other materials. The
20

duty is owed to all persons desiring to make use of the service whose
residence or place of work is within the borough and those who are
undergoing full time education within the borough. As well as this duty there is
a power to make these facilities available to any person.
5.4.2 It is not expected that relocating the library will impact upon the service
provided to residents that was agreed through the Library Service Review in
April 2016. The library will continue to:
 be delivered as a Partnership library by the successful community-led
organisation
 operate from a space of at least 185m2 as a minimum, the size agreed
through the Library Service Review
 deliver the same core services and stock as outlined in the product
catalogue appended to the report to CELS Committee in March 2016.
The impact of the change in location on those groups with protected
characteristics has been explored in the Equalities Impact Assessment
(Appendix B) and it is deemed that sufficient mitigations are or will be in place
to minimise the impact on certain groups.
5.4.3 Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A, sets out the terms of
reference of the Policy and Resources Committee and states that ‘if any
report comes with the remit of more than one committee, to avoid the report
being discussed at several committees the report will be presented and
determined at the most appropriate committee. If this is not clear, then the
report will be discussed and determined by the Policy and Resources
Committee’.
5.4.4 In this case the report’s recommendations cut across the Adults and
Safeguarding Committee, whose commissioning plan contains the project for
the relocation of Church Farm leisure centre and the Children’s,
Education, Libraries and Safeguarding Committee.
5.5

Risk Management
There is a risk that the future re-location of the library will make it less
attractive to potential partner organisations to operate the Partnership Library.
The proposal to relocate the library was highlighted throughout the
procurement process with organisations expressing an interest and
subsequently submitting business cases to deliver the service from the library
in East Barnet. Therefore, the successful partner will be aware and prepared
for the potential relocation. The council will cover the additional costs
associated with moving the library in 2019.

5.6

Equalities and Diversity

5.6.1 In line with the 2010 Equality Act, an Equalities Impact Assessment has been
undertaken for this proposal to relocate East Barnet Library. The full report

21

can be found in Appendix B. When considering the groups with protected
characteristics, it was evaluated that the relocation might impact older people
or those with disabilities who currently walk to the library (or travel a very short
distance) and school children attending schools neighbouring the library.
Public transport routes provide good access to the proposed new site and
following consultation with residents, it is clear that residents living close to the
Victoria Recreation Ground who currently have to travel to either East Barnet
or Chipping Barnet will benefit from the relocation.
5.6.2 If the recommendation to relocate the library is approved, the Library Service
will investigate the option of providing a new stop for the mobile library in East
Barnet to mitigate the impact on those who will find the distance to the
proposed new site prohibitive.
5.7

Consultation and Engagement

5.7.1 See paragraphs 1.10 above. Full results of the consultation can be found in
Appendix A.
6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Barnet’s Future Library Service Children, Education, Libraries and
Safeguarding Committee, 23 March 2016
https://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s30694/Barnets%20future%20Libr
ary%20Service.pdf
The relocation and redevelopment of Church Farm Leisure Centre and the
redevelopment of Barnet Copthall Leisure Centre Policy and Resources
Committee, 16 December 2015
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s28130/The%20relocation%20and
%20redevelopment%20of%20Church%20Farm%20Leisure%20Centre%20an
d%20the%20redevelopment%20of%20Barnet%20Copth.pdf

22

Appendix A: The future of library provision in East
Barnet/New Barnet - Final consultation report
Executive Summary
Residents were consulted on the proposal to relocate the Library in East Barnet to
the proposed future leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground in New Barnet
for an 8 week period from October – December 2016. In addition to an online
questionnaire, residents and library users were invited to attend drop-in sessions in
the locality to hear about the plans and have their say.
Due to the localised nature of the proposal, the response was relatively low with a
total of 52 respondents to the questionnaire and 62 residents present at the drop-in
sessions. As well as usual resident engagement methods, approximately 4,000
letters were delivered to local addresses. As expected, the response was mixed with
more than half of comments made during drop-in sessions being supportive of the
proposal and just under half of questionnaire respondents being supportive of the
proposal. Residents who attended drop-in sessions were encouraged to also
complete a questionnaire, therefore it should be noted that there may be overlap in
the results where views that were recorded at drop-in sessions were repeated in
questionnaires. For that reason, the results of the questionnaire and the drop-in
sessions will be reported separately in this appendix.
The consultation was undertaken around the same time as public information
sessions on the wider changes to the library service as agreed for implementation
earlier in the year. There were a number of negative comments regarding the
reduction in library space and the transfer of the Library to a Partnership library from
April 2017 made by residents that were against the proposal to relocate the library.
These comments have been recorded in this report however it should be recognised
that these particular comments do not relate to the changes being consulted on here.
In general, those who were less supportive of the proposal are users of the current
Library building who currently walk to the library in 5-15minutes. Understandably,
most of these residents want to retain the library in its current location as it is
convenient. Many questionnaire respondents and residents who attended the drop-in
sessions were supportive of the relocation both in terms of improved location to them
personally as well as improved facilities for the local area. A number of residents
referred to the benefits to them of having multiple services on one site as well as the
benefit of increased usage of the library services in that locality.
This report details the method undertaken and the full results of the consultation
undertaken.

23

1.

Background

The council recognises that libraries are a universal and unique service that offers
learning opportunities to all from the early years through to retirement. Our ongoing
ambition is for libraries to continue to:


help all children in Barnet to have the best start in life; developing essential
language, literacy and learning skills, and developing a love of reading from
an early age



provide residents with the skills to live independently; to improve their health
and wellbeing, and to get a job and progress whilst in work



bring people together, acting as a focal point for communities and assisting
resident groups to support their local area.

After a comprehensive review and extensive consultation with residents and library
users the council have committed to retaining all 14 of the current libraries, as well
as the Home & Mobile and digital library service as part of the new strategy for the
Library Service.
Residents tell us that co-locating library services with other services is a good way to
tackle some of the financial challenges faced by the Library Service. This paper
reports on the results of an 8 week consultation with residents on the proposal to relocate the Library to the Victoria Recreation Ground in New Barnet. The opportunity
to provide new library facilities in this part of the borough has arisen from the
council’s decision to invest in new leisure facilities to replace those offered at Church
Farm in 2019. This decision followed extensive consultation with local residents.
1.1
Proposed future library location
The proposed future site for the Library is 0.9miles north-west from the existing
building. It is well connected by public transport with a number of bus routes and
New Barnet train station a 5 minute walk away. There is a direct bus route (number
384) from Crescent Road near the current library to Lawton Road opposite the
proposed future location, a journey taking approximately 10minutes. The map below
indicates the current and proposed future location for the library.
1.2
Why move the library?
In addition to tackling some of the financial challenges faced by the council, there are
a number of other factors contributing to the council’s decision to consult on the
proposal to relocate the library:

1.2.1 Usage and footfall
All libraries in Barnet have seen usage fall by more than 25% in the last 10 years,
however the Library in East Barnet has seen the greatest reduction in usage of 52%
in this time period. In contrast, projected footfall at the new leisure facility is more
than 3 times that of the current library. When residents were consulted on the
council’s proposals for future leisure provision in Barnet, 65% of respondents said
they would consider accessing library services from a leisure centre. It is likely that
the library would see a significant increase in use through the proposed relocation,

24

benefitting greater numbers of residents in addition to generating greater income to
the community-based organisation that will be delivering the Partnership library
service from East Barnet.
1.2.2 Transport and facilities
The proposed new location is well connected by public transport. The number 384
bus stops on Lawton Road by the vehicle entrance to the leisure centre. In addition,
there are a number of other bus routes within a 5 – 10 minute walk of the proposed
future location:
383 - The Spires to Woodside Park Station
307 - Barnet Hospital to Brimsdown Station
184 - Chesterfield Road to Turnpike Lane Station or Victoria Road
326 - The Spires to Brent Cross Shopping Centre
626 - Dame Alice Owen’s School to Finchley Central Station or North Finchley Bus
Station
New Barnet train station is approximately a 10 minute walk away with connections
into London and Welwyn Garden City.
Relocating the library to the new premises within the leisure centre would provide
brand new library facilities with lower running costs for the Partnership Library
organisation in addition to reduced maintenance costs for the council. In addition to
the new location providing co-located leisure facilities, there will also be a cafe on
site and more parking than at the present library site.
1.2.3 Good example of this model working well
There are already many examples of libraries having been successfully co-located
with other community facilities, both in London and elsewhere in the UK. For
example, Sutton Council has co-located one of their libraries with three other
community-led services, including a leisure centre. The library now attracts more
visitors, many of whom wouldn’t have otherwise used a traditional, stand-alone
library. Hillingdon and Greenwich Councils, likewise, have libraries in buildings
shared with leisure centres.
2.

Technical details and method

In summary, the consultation was administered as follows:





The consultation on the future library provision in East Barnet and New Barnet
was open for eight weeks, from the 24 October 2016 to 19 December 2016.
The consultation was published on Engage Barnet http://engage.barnet.gov.uk
together with a consultation document which provided detailed background
information about the proposal for relocating East Barnet Library.
Respondent’s views were gathered via an online survey. Paper copies were
also made available in East Barnet Library and on request.
Six drop-in sessions were held at the current library site in addition to venues in
the vicinity of the proposed future location.

25




3.

The consultation was widely promoted via letter to approximately 4000
addresses in the surrounding area; the council website; Twitter; Facebook; and
posters in East Barnet library.
Further promotion was undertaken with schools through an inclusion in the
regular school circular as well as individual letters sent to 6 schools in the
immediate vicinity of the current and proposed future library sites.
Questionnaire design

The questionnaire was developed to ascertain residents’ views on the proposal to
relocate East Barnet Library to be collocated with the new leisure centre at the
Victoria Recreation Ground. In particular, residents were asked:
 whether they tended to agree or disagree with the proposal
 how likely they would be to use the library should it be located within the
proposed new leisure centre
 for reasons why the would/would not be likely to use the library in the
proposed new location
In order to enable further understanding of individual responses the questionnaire
also included:
 An open ended question where respondents were invited to write in any
comments on why they agree or disagree with the proposal
 Open ended questions on reasons why respondents would be likely or
unlikely to use the library in the proposed new location
 Questions to establish whether respondents are current users of East
Barnet Library (or another library), the frequency of their use and the time
/transport taken to reach the library. If the respondents were not current
users, they were directed to a question on reasons why they do not use the
library currently.
 Key demographic questions to help understand the views of different
demographic groups.
Throughout the questionnaire and where applicable hyperlinks were provided to the
relevant sections of the consultation document. Where questionnaires were made
available in the library and on request, they were packaged with a consultation
document to ensure all respondents were equipped with the same information.
4.

Drop-in sessions

Six drop-in sessions were held to provide residents with the opportunity to ask
questions directly to officers regarding the proposal. The sessions were held over 4
weeks on different days and at different times to ensure accessibility to all. Table 1
below gives the details of these drop-in sessions.

26

Table 1: Details of six drop-in sessions held during the consultation period
Drop-in session location
East Barnet Library
East Barnet Library
East Barnet Library
New Barnet Community Centre
St James Church, New Barnet
New Barnet Community Centre

Date
Tuesday 15 November
Tuesday 15 November
Thursday 17 November
Thursday 1 December
Thursday 1 December
Monday 12 December

Drop-in between
2 – 4pm
6 – 8pm
11am – 1pm
11am – 1pm
4 – 8pm
10am – 12noon

A number of officers were present at these sessions; numbers of residents attending
were recorded in addition to the questions and comments made.
5.

Response to the consultation

A total of 52 questionnaires were completed and 62 individuals attended the face-toface drop-in sessions.
Residents who attended drop-in sessions were encouraged to also complete a
questionnaire, therefore it should be noted that there may well be overlap in the
results where views that were recorded at drop-in sessions were repeated in
questionnaires. For that reason, the results of the questionnaire and the drop-in
sessions will be reported separately in this appendix. Of those that completed a
questionnaire, 48 were responding as Barnet residents with the remaining 4
respondents not answering the question.
6.

Protected characteristics

The council is required by law, Equality Act 2010, to pay due regard to equalities in
eliminating unlawful discrimination, advancing equality of opportunity and fostering
good relations between people from different groups. The protected characteristics
identified in the Equality Act 2010 are age, disability, ethnicity, gender, gender
reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy, maternity, religion or belief
and sexual orientation. To assist us in complying with the duty under the Equality Act
2010 we asked the general public consultation respondents to provide equalities
monitoring data for 6 of these characteristics and explained that collecting this
information will help us understand the needs of our different communities and that
all the personal information provided will be treated in the strictest confidence and
will be stored securely in accordance with our responsibilities under the Data
Protection Act 1998. Table 2 below shows the profile of respondents to the
questionnaire in relation to these characteristics.

27

Table 2: Profile of respondents to the questionnaire in relation to the 6 protected
characteristics
Protected Characteristic
Gender

Number

Percentage

Female
Male
Prefer not to say
Did not answer
TOTAL

26
18
1
7
52

50%
35%
2%
13%
100%

Pregnant
On maternity leave
No/Skipped
TOTAL

2
0
24
26

8%
0%
92%
100%

Under 16
16-17
18-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75+
Prefer not to say
Did not answer
TOTAL

0
2
2
5
6
9
11
8
1
1
7
52

0%
4%
4%
10%
12%
17%
21%
15%
2%
2%
13%
100%

Pregnancy and maternity

Age

Ethnicity
Asian
Black
Mixed (White and Black
Caribbean)
White
Other
Prefer not to say
Did not answer
TOTAL

2
1

4%
2%

1
36
1
4
7
52

2%
69%
2%
8%
13%
100%

Yes
No
Prefer not to say/skipped
Did not answer
TOTAL

5
35
5
7
52

10%
67%
10%
13%
100%

Disability

Religion

28

Agnostic
Atheist
Baha’i
Buddhist
Christian
Hindu
Humanist
Jain
Jewish
Muslim
Sikh
No religion
Prefer not to say
Other religion/belief (please
specify)
Did not answer
TOTAL

1
10
0
0
18
0
0
0
4
0
1
7
3

2%
19%
0%
0%
35%
0%
0%
0%
8%
0%
2%
13%
6%

0
8
52

0%
15%
100%

As the data set is relatively small and the impact localised in one area of the
borough, the profile of respondents as shown in table 2 has not been compared to
the general public data for Barnet. Furthermore, approximately 13% of respondents
(7 or 8 out of 52) did not answer the questions on protected characteristics therefore
there is limited accuracy in drawing conclusions from responses based on the
protected characteristics. Nevertheless, an Equalities Impact Assessment has been
undertaken using both data from this consultation in addition to a needs assessment
of the population (and wards specifically) undertaken as part of the wider Library
Service Review. The Equalities Impact Assessment can be viewed in Appendix B.
7.

Interpretation of results

Due to the localised nature of this consultation, the number of responses was
relatively low. As expected the majority of respondents (44 out of 52) were current
users of East Barnet Library. Due to this small sample size, throughout the analysis,
numbers of respondents will be quoted along with percentages where necessary.
Where percentages do not add up to 100, this may be due to rounding, or the
question is multi coded. All open ended questions that invite respondents to write in
comments, are multi-coded and therefore add up to more than 100 per cent.
All open-ended responses to questions in the consultation have been classified
based on the main themes arising from the comment, so that they can be
summarised. There were a number of comments relating to the wider changes to the
library service taking place in 2017. These included comments around the concept of
Partnership libraries and the use of volunteers. These comments were recorded and,
as they do not directly relate to this specific consultation, they are reported under
‘other’ in the coding for open-ended questions.

29

8.

Calculating and reporting on results

The results for each question are based on “valid responses”, i.e. all those providing
an answer (this may or may not be the same as the total sample) unless otherwise
specified. The base size may therefore vary from question to question.
9.

Questionnaire results in detail

9.1
Co-locating library services
9.1.1 Proposal to relocate East Barnet library to co-locate with the proposed
new leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground
Residents were asked how far they agree or disagree with the proposal to relocate
East Barnet library, a map was supplied (in print or as a link) showing the current
and proposed future location of the library.
Respondents that agree
 23 respondents strongly agreed or tended to agree, 18 of these are current
users of East Barnet Library and stated that they would be likely to use the
library should it relocate as proposed.
 5 respondents that agree with the proposal are not currently users of East
Barnet Library, 4 of these stated that they would be likely to use the library
should it relocate. They gave reasons including: intention to use it when
they use the other leisure facilities; improved location; and greater parking
availability.
Respondents that disagree
 26 respondents strongly disagreed or tended to disagree, 23 of these are
current users of East Barnet Library. 6 respondents stated that they would
be likely to use the library should it relocate and 20 said they would be
unlikely.
 2 of the respondents that disagreed do not currently use the library and
both stated that they would not intend to use it should it relocate due to lack
of convenience and no requirement to use a library.
Chart A shows the full response to this question.

30

Chart A:
Question 1 - Overall to what extent do you agree or disagree with the proposal to
move East Barnet library to co-locate with the new leisure centre at the Victoria
Recreation Ground?

Number of respondents (total 52)

25
20
15
22

10
5

11

12
3

0
Strongly agree

4

Tend to agree Neither agree or Tend to disagree Strongly disagree
disagree

0
Don't know

Chart B shows a breakdown of the responses to question 1 by key demographics.
There are 3 bars representing the categories of response for each characteristic:
 Agree – respondent selected strongly agree or tend to agree
 Disagree – respondent selected strongly disagree or disagree
 Neither agree or disagree

31

Di
Religion/
belief

Chart B:
Breakdown of responses to question 1 by key demographics
Number of responses
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

20

Female
Male

Age

Pregnant
On maternity leave
Under 16
16-17
18-24
25-34
35-44
45-54
55-64
65-74
75+

Agree
Disagree
Neither

White
Asian
Black
Other
No
Yes
Christian
Atheist
No religion
Jewish
Agnostic
Sikh

9.1.2 Reasons given by those who agree with the proposal to relocate East
Barnet Library
Table 3 gives full details of the type of comments received on why respondents
agreed with the proposal to relocate East Barnet Library. The table is ranked by how
frequently the reasons were mentioned by respondents. The most frequently
mentioned reasons as to why respondents supported the proposal were: improved
location for themselves or their families to make use of the library services; and the
benefits to them and other residents of co-locating multiple services on one site.

32

Table 3: Response to question 2, reasons given by those who agree with the
proposal
Overall to what extent do you agree or disagree with the
proposal to move East Barnet library to co-locate with the new
leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground?

THOSE WHO AGREE
No reason given
Improved location/accessibility
Benefit of multiple services on one site
Increased usage of the library
Financial benefits
Benefit to the local area
Other

%

Base1

100%
9%
48%
39%
30%
13%
9%
4%

23
2
11
9
7
3
2
1

9.1.3 Reasons given by those who disagree with the proposal to relocate East
Barnet Library
Table 4 gives full details of the reasons why respondents disagreed with the
proposal to relocate East Barnet Library. Again, the table is ranked by how frequently
the reasons were mentioned by respondents. The most frequently mentioned
reasons as to why respondents were less supportive of the proposal were: reduced
convenience for them indicated by increased distance to travel; and loss of the
facility for the village of East Barnet and/or local schools in East Barnet.
Table 4: Response to question 2, reasons given by those who disagree with the
proposal
Overall to what extent do you agree or disagree with the
proposal to move East Barnet library to co-locate with the new
leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground?

THOSE WHO DISAGREE
No reason given
Reduced convenience (increased distance to travel)
Loss of facility for the village/schools
Other3

%

Base2

100

26
2
12
6
6

8%
46%
23%
23%

Respondents could write in more than one comment. Percentages are calculated on the number of
respondents who indicated they agree with the proposal.
2 Respondents could write in more than one comment. Percentages are calculated on the number of
respondents who indicated they do not agree with the proposal.
1

3

There were a number of comments received that related to the wider changes to the library service
as part of the Library Service Review, including concerns over the Partnership library model, reduced
opening hours and safety and security of unstaffed libraries. These are described as ‘other’ in table 4
above.

33

Impact of selling the library (potential for more development)
Concern over co-location with busy leisure facility/parking
Do not want leisure centre to be built at all

15%
12%
12%

4
3
3

9.1.4 How likely would you be to use the library if it was located within the
proposed new leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground?
Approximately half of respondents (27 out of 52) said they would be very likely or
fairly likely to use the library in its proposed new location. Just under half of
respondents (24 out of 52) said they would be very unlikely or fairly unlikely to use
the library in its proposed new location. Chart B shows a full breakdown of the
response to this question.
Chart B: Question 3 - How likely would you be to use the library if it was located
within the proposed new leisure centre at the Victoria Recreation Ground?

Number of respondents (total 52)

18
16
14
12
10
8

16

6

15
11
9

4
2

1

0
Very likely

Fairly likely

Fairly unlikely

Very unlikely

Don't know/not
sure

Respondents were directed to separate questions for the reasoning behind their
answer depending upon their response. They were given a number of options to
choose from as well as an opportunity for free text to express any reasons not
captured in the options given. Table 5 shows the reasons selected by those who
would be likely to use the library (some respondents selected more than one option).
The table is ranked by how frequently the reasons were mentioned by respondents.
6 respondents left additional comments in the free text field, 3 of these referenced
the relatively small distance between the current and proposed future site and others
referred to the benefits and value they gain from the library and therefore they would
be likely to use it even if it moves. One referenced the benefit of modern facilities at
the proposed new building.

34

Table 5: Response to question 4, reasons respondents would be likely to use the
library
How likely would you be to use the library if it was located
within the proposed new leisure centre at the Victoria
Recreation Ground?
Those who would be likely to use the library
It is near to where I live/work
I intend to use it when I use the other facilities at the proposed
leisure centre
Other
It is convenient for public transport
There will be greater parking availability

%

Base4

100%

27

70%

19

51%
22%

14
6

11%

3

11%

3

Table 6 shows the reasons selected by those who would be unlikely to use the
library. The table is ranked by how frequently the reasons were mentioned by
respondents.8 respondents left additional comments in the free text field and these
mostly related to inconvenience to them of the proposed location and increased
distance to travel as well as concern over reduced opening hours.
Table 6: Response to question 5, reasons respondents would be unlikely to use the
library
How likely would you be to use the library if it was located
within the proposed new leisure centre at the Victoria
Recreation Ground?
Those who would be unlikely to use the library
It is not convenient
It is too far to travel
Other
I have no need to use the library
I use another public library

%
100%
67%
58%
21%
13%
0%

Base5
24
16
14
5
3
0

As expected the majority of those who disagreed with the proposal (total 26 out of
52) responded as unlikely to use the library should it relocate. However 6 individuals
did respond that they would be very or fairly likely to use the library if it were
relocated.

Respondents could select more than one reason. Percentages are calculated on the number of
respondents who indicated they would be likely to use the library.
5 Respondents could select more than one reason. Percentages are calculated on the number of
respondents who indicated they would be unlikely to use the library.
4

35

9.2

Current usage of East Barnet Library

In order to analyse the views of users, respondents were asked a series of questions
regarding their current use of East Barnet Library. Of the 52 respondents to the
questionnaire, 44 use East Barnet Library and 7 do not (1 respondent did not
answer). Of those who use East Barnet Library, Chart C shows how often they told
us they use the library.
Chart C:
Question 7 - How often do you use East Barnet Library?

Number of respondents (total 44)

12
10
8
6

11

4
2
0

7

8

3
Daily

6
2

2-3 times a Once per Twice per
week
week
month

2

Monthly Less than
Twice
once per every six
month
months

1
Once a
year

2

2

Less than
once per
year

Other

Out of the 44 individuals that indicated they use East Barnet Library, 35 stated that
they use it monthly or more often.
Of those who use the library monthly or more often, 16 strongly disagree with the
proposal to relocate the library and 4 tend to disagree (total 20 out of 35 disagree).
Most of the comments and reasons left related to the inconvenience to individuals of
the proposed location. 18 of these individuals (18 out of 20) currently walk to the
library.
12 of those who use the library monthly or more often (12 out of 35) strongly agree
or tend to agree with the proposal to relocate the library. 3 neither agreed or
disagreed.
Charts D and E show how questionnaire respondents currently get to the library and
how long their journey time is.

36

Chart D:
Question 8 - How do you get to East Barnet library?
40
35

Number of responses

30
25
20
34

15
10
11

5

4

0

3
1

Walk

Car

Bus

Train

Other

Chart E:
Question 9 - How long is your journey to East Barnet library?

3 0

20
21

Less than 5 minutes
5 – 15 minutes
15 – 30 minutes
More than 30 minutes

A number of respondents who currently use East Barnet Library selected multiple
modes of transport however the majority of individuals walk to the library all or part of
the journey. 3 respondents selected ‘other’; they each specified that they travel by

37

bicycle to the library currently. All respondents who currently use East Barnet Library
travel for 30 minutes or less in order to reach the library
10.

Drop-in session results in detail

A total of 62 people attended the 6 drop-in sessions. The comments made by
individuals were recorded and have been classified based on the main themes
arising from the comments, so that they can be summarised. In addition, those
attending drop-in sessions were encouraged to take part in the main questionnaire
therefore some individual views may be reported both through the questionnaire and
the drop-in sessions.
In summary:
 32 comments were supportive of the proposal, 25 were less supportive and 4
were reflected as being neutral.
 Of those in support of the proposed relocation, the greatest numbers of
comments were classified as: the co-location providing benefits of multiple
services on one site; the relocation having the potential to generate increased
use of the library; and the relocation providing the opportunity for a new library
building.
 Of those who were less supportive of the proposal, the greatest numbers of
comments were classified as: loss of the library facility for the village of East
Barnet and the current local schools; reduced convenience; and ‘other’.
 The ‘other’ category was made up of comments relating to the wider changes
to the library service including: concerns over the use of volunteers and the
Partnership library model and concern over changing opening hours. One
resident also expressed concern over illumination of the walkways in the park
and resident safety.
Table 7 – Classification of comments made during drop-in sessions on the proposal
to relocate East Barnet Library. (Total comments classified - 61)
Classification of comments supportive of the
proposal to relocate East Barnet Library
Benefit of multiple services on one site

Number of
comments
9

Percentage of
total comments
15%

Increased usage of the library

6

10%

Opportunity for a new library

6

10%

Benefit to the local area

5

8%

Financial benefits

3

5%

Improved location/accessibility

3

5%

Total supportive comments

32

52%

Number of
comments

Percentage of
total comments

7
7

11%
11%

Classification of comments less supportive
of the proposal to relocate East Barnet
Library
Loss of facility for the village/schools
Other

38

Reduced convenience
Concern over co-location with busy leisure
facility/parking
Do not want leisure centre to be built at all
Total less supportive comments

Neutral comments

5
4

8%
7%

2
25

3%
41%

4

7%

Throughout the face-to-face consultation sessions it was necessary to reiterate that
this proposed relocation lies separately to the wider suite of changes happening
within the Library Service as part of the broader Library Service Review.
11.

Conclusion

The Library Service is a highly valued resource in Barnet and as part of the wider
Library Service Review, Barnet Council is maintaining all 14 of the Borough’s
libraries whilst making significant savings. As part of this review, the council
committed to exploring opportunities, where they arise, for libraries to be re-provided
in new, fit-for-purpose buildings. The response to this consultation regarding the
proposal to relocate the Library to co-locate with the proposed new leisure centre
was, as expected, mixed. The current Library building is located in a residential area
and a significant number of the respondents who submitted a questionnaire or
attended drop-in sessions live close to the library, within a few minutes walk. These
residents understandably would like to retain the library in its current position,
although a number who spoke to officers face to face appreciated the benefits that
could be realised through co-location with the proposed leisure centre.
The site of the proposed new leisure centre in New Barnet, just under a mile from the
current library, is also in a residential area. Many residents who responded to the
consultation were very positive about the potential for library services in this area. In
addition to personal benefits of co-location with the leisure facilities in a modern
building, many residents cited wider benefits including increased footfall in the library
and wider reach to those who may not currently use the library.
In conclusion, results from both the questionnaire and drop-in sessions were mixed
with approximately half of respondents supportive of the proposal to relocate the
Library and half of respondents less supportive of the proposal.

39

This page is intentionally left blank

Appendix B - Equality Analysis (EqA)
Questionnaire
Please refer to the guidance before completing this form.
1.

Details of function, policy, procedure or service:

Proposal to relocate the Library in East Barnet to the Victoria Recreation Ground, New Barnet
Relocated service
Family Services
22 November 2016
2.

Names and roles of officers completing this assessment:

Lead officer

Val White, Programme Director, Education & Learning

Stakeholder groups

Internal:
Family Services Delivery Unit
LBB Members
Informed by engagement with:
Library users
Library non-users
“Charteris Groups”: elderly people; children; disabled
people; unemployed people; people from areas of high
deprivation (identified as having specific needs from libraries
by Sue Charteris in her 2009 review of Wirral Libraries).
Voluntary and community organisations

Representative from internal
stakeholders

Hannah Richens, Libraries Manager, Libraries, Workforce
and Community Engagement

Representative from external
stakeholders

N/A

Delivery Unit Equalities
Network rep

N/A

Performance Management rep

N/A

HR rep (for employment
related issues)

N/A.

3.

Full description of function, policy, procedure or service:

Context:
Barnet has a library network of 14 library sites and a home & mobile service. In April 2016 the
Council approved the implementation of a new library service strategy that would maintain
these 14 sites whilst making significant savings to the annual budget. As part of this proposal,
the council committed to explore opportunities for libraries to be re-provided in modern, fit-for*

41

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

purpose facilities where benefits could be realised for residents from co-location of services in
addition to ongoing efficiencies.
The Council is proposing to re-provide the library services currently offered from the library
building in East Barnet in a new, modern facility as part of the proposed new leisure facility at
the Victoria Recreation Ground in New Barnet. It is recognised that this proposed future location
is approximately 0.9miles north of the current site. Library users may choose to use the newly
located library or alternatively, Osidge library which is approximately 1mile south of the current
library in East Barnet.
As part of the wider future library strategy, the Library in East Barnet will be a community-led
Partnership library from April 2017. The library will remain part of the wider Barnet network but
the services will be delivered by a community-based organisation, albeit with ongoing financial
and professional support from the Library Service. This library will be delivered from a smaller
footprint than at present both whether it remains on the current site or is relocated to the new
proposed leisure facility. This reduction in footprint and change to partnership approach was
consulted on previously and addressed in the previous EIA therefore this EIA will focus on the
potential impact related to the proposed relocation.
Why move the library?
The current library building requires significant investment in order to successfully offer library
services in the longer term. A unique opportunity has arisen to provide new facilities co-located
with leisure services which are well used by residents. Over time, library usage has been falling
and co-locating library services alongside well–used leisure facilities is likely to attract users to
the library as well as improving convenience for those residents who use both services.
All libraries in Barnet have seen usage fall by more than 25% in the last 10 years, however the
library in East Barnet has seen the greatest reduction in usage of 52% in this time period. In
contrast, projected footfall at the new leisure facility is more than 3 times that of the current
library. When residents were consulted on the council’s proposals for future leisure provision in
Barnet, 65% of respondents said they would consider accessing library services from a leisure
centre. It is likely that the library would see a significant increase in use through the proposed
relocation. From April 2017 East Barnet Library will be operating as a Partnership Library as
part of the future library strategy meaning it will be managed by a community-led organisation
with ongoing support from the council. Any increase in income generated through greater use of
the library following the relocation to the proposed leisure facility will therefore be re-invested
into the Partnership Library and the local community.
There are already many examples of libraries having been successfully co-located with other
community facilities, both in London and elsewhere in the UK. For example, Sutton Council has
co-located one of their libraries with three other community-led services, including a leisure
centre. The library now attracts more visitors, many of whom wouldn’t have otherwise used a
traditional, stand-alone library. Hillingdon Council, likewise, has a library in a building shared
with a leisure centre.
What are the outcomes to be achieved?
Through relocating the library to co-locate with the proposed leisure facility the council aims to:
 Create a modern, fit-for-purpose library facility that meets the needs of the local
community
 Create a sustainable library offer whereby building costs are shared and footfall is
greater than at present
 Avoid spending extensive capital funding on refurbishing the current site
2

42

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016



Dispose of or develop the current site to generate income for the council

Who is it aimed at?
The Council’s statutory duty to provide a comprehensive and efficient library service for the
borrowing of books and other materials applies to all those who live, work or study in the
borough under the Public Libraries and Museums Act 1964. This duty applies to those persons
whose residence or place of work is within the borough or those who are undergoing full time
education within the borough.
Who is likely to benefit?
A new, fit-for-purpose library space within the proposed leisure facility should benefit those who
wish to use the library. It is recognised that this proposed future location is approximately
0.9miles north of the current site therefore some residents currently using East Barnet library
may be required to travel slightly further to reach the proposed new location. Alternatively,
Osidge library is approximately 1mile south of the current library in East Barnet.
Residents in the vicinity of the proposed new leisure facility would benefit from having a library
located with the leisure facilities. Currently, these residents may be travelling more than
1.5miles to access Chipping Barnet Library. (See the map below).
As part of the wider future library strategy, East Barnet Library will be a Partnership library from
April 2017. It will remain part of the Barnet network of libraries but will be managed by a
community-led organisation. With proposed increase in footfall at the new leisure facility, all
increases in income to the library will be received by the partner organisation and reinvested
into the Partnership library and wider community.

3

43

Osidge Library

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

How have needs based on age, disability, gender reassignment, pregnancy and
maternity, race, religion or belief, sex, sexual orientation, marriage and civil partnership
and carers been taken account of?
The Needs Assessment undertaken as part of the wider Library Service Review undertaken in
2015 looks at the demographic makeup of the borough as well as how libraries are used. This
Equalities Impact Assessment draws on the following analysis:

 Needs Assessment,
 2 phases of the Library Service Review consultation
 The consultation undertaken in 2016 for the future provision of library services in East
Barnet and New Barnet.
It sets out identified specific needs of each of the above groups, outlining how the proposal to
relocate the library might impact on each group and proposed actions to mitigate the impact. It
also analyses the needs of unemployed people and people from areas of high deprivation as
these are groups identified as having specific requirements from a public library service.
Identify the ways people can find out about and benefit from the proposals.
If approved, the relocation of East Barnet Library will be widely publicised in the local area. It
will also be publicised through the SPA programme as the new leisure facility is built and
opened. As this will be a community-led, Partnership library from April 2017, the Council will
work with the partner organisation to ensure the residents are made aware of the relocation.
Consider any processes they need to go through or criteria that we apply to determine
eligibility.
There will be no change to the processes or eligibility as a result of the proposed relocation.
Individuals who wish to use a library are able to do so.

4

44

1.

How are the equality strands affected?

Equality
Strand

Affected?

Explain how affected and mitigating actions

1. Age

Yes
No

General considerations:

/

Older people
Barnet has a higher proportion of people aged 85 and over (3.1%) compared to Outer London (1.8%) and
the UK (2.3%). Latest projections suggest that by 2030 the number of people aged 65 and over is projected
to increase by 34.5%, over three times greater than other age groups. The growth in the number of over
85’s is even more significant, increasing by two-thirds (66.6%) by 2030 (8,212 in 2015 to 13,684 in 2030).
The greatest increase in 65 and over populations is projected in Brunswick Park (5.8%), Hale (5.5%), High
Barnet (4.9%), Coppetts (4.7%) and East Barnet (4.7%). Residents in two of these wards in particular,
Brunswick Park and East Barnet, may be users of East Barnet library and therefore impacted by this
proposal. Older people may be specifically impacted by the change in location if, for example, they
currently walk to the library at East Barnet.
What action has been taken already to mitigate this?




45

*

As part of the Sport and Physical Activity programme, residents were consulted on proposed future
locations for the Church Farm leisure centre in addition to wider analysis (including transport
analysis) being undertaken to decide on the preferred option of the Victoria Recreation Ground. This
proposed location has good public transport access, there are a number of bus routes and a train
station within a 10-15 minute walk. The number 384 bus stops outside the front of the proposed new
leisure facility.
The leisure centre, in which the library is proposed to co-locate will be a fit for purpose building with
full disabled access and ample parking.

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

What action do you plan to take to mitigate this?
Action

By when

Any users who would find the proposed location prohibitive to their future use of the Prior to relocation in
library will be encouraged to take advantage of the services offered by the Home 2019
and Mobile Library Service. The Library Service will explore the option of providing
a mobile library stop in East Barnet to accommodate those who find the distance to
New Barnet or Osidge prohibitive.
During consultation and prior to relocating the library (should it go ahead), the public transport links
will be widely displayed in the current library

Consultation
period
(Oct – Dec 2016)
Prior to relocation in
2019

School Children
The current library in East Barnet is located very close to Danegrove Primary School and is well used by
parents and children after school in addition to class visits during school hours. Relocation of the library
would make it approximately 1 mile from this school and affect the potential for visits during school hours,
however depending on where children travel from to go to school, the library may still be within walking
distance. The proposed future location is close to a number of other primary schools that currently do not
have a public library within easy access therefore, these schools and pupils could see significant benefit
from the move.
What action has been taken already to mitigate this?


Advertised the consultation in the schools circular and undertaken drop-in sessions at the library
during after-school and evening hours to ensure schools and pupils are made aware of the proposal
and given the opportunity to comment as part of the consultation process

46

6

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

What action do you plan to take to mitigate this?
Action

By when

Library Service to initiate conversation with the schools in the vicinity of the proposed future location
to increase awareness of how the local library can support the national curriculum in schools.

Prior to relocation in
2019

period
During consultation and prior to relocating the library (should it go ahead), the Consultation
(Oct
–
Dec
2016)
public transport links will be widely displayed in the current library
Prior to relocation in
2019

2. Disability

Yes
No

/

General considerations
Modelled data suggests that disabled residents account for roughly 14% of library usage, with 6.5% of
transactions being carried out by people whose day to day activities are limited ‘a lot’, and 7.5% by people
whose day to day activities are limited ‘a little’. Looking at library usage as a whole, customers whose daily
activities are limited ‘a lot’ use libraries in line with the percentage of the borough population whose
activities are limited in this way (6.5% of library users compared to 6.6% of borough population) according
to modelled data. Residents who day to day activities are limited ‘a little’ use the library as much as
expected according to modelled data.
Relocating the library could impact users with physical disabilities, particularly if they currently travel a very
short distance. Moving the library may mean that users who currently walk to the library will have to use
public transport or travel by car in the future (if they are unable to walk the distance to the proposed new
library).
What action has been taken already to mitigate this?




As part of the Sport and Physical Activity programme, residents were consulted on proposed future
locations for the Church Farm leisure centre in addition to wider analysis (including transport
analysis) being undertaken to decide on the preferred option of the Victoria Recreation Ground. This
proposed location has good public transport access, there are a number of bus routes and a train
station within a 10-15 minute walk. The number 384 bus stops outside the front of the proposed new
leisure facility.
The leisure centre, in which the library is proposed to co-locate will be a fit for purpose building with
full disabled access and ample parking.

47

7

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016



Co-locating the library with other well used facilities may make these services more accessible to
disabled residents. Individuals may want to make use of various facilities (library, cafe, swimming
pool, gym etc) whilst at the proposed new centre.

What action do you plan to take to mitigate this?
Action

By when

period
During consultation and prior to relocating the library (should it go ahead), the Consultation
(Oct
–
Dec
2016)
public transport links will be widely displayed in the library.
Prior to relocation in
2019

Any users who would find the proposed location prohibitive to their future use of the Prior to relocation in
library will be encouraged to take advantage of the services offered by the Home 2019
and Mobile Library Service. The Library Service will explore the option of providing
a mobile library stop in East Barnet to accommodate those who find the distance to
New Barnet or Osidge prohibitive.

Yes
No

/

4. Pregnancy Yes
No
and
maternity

/

3. Gender
reassignm
ent

General considerations
The library service does not collect user data on gender reassignment and this data is not available from the
2011 Census. Respondents to both phases of the Library Service Review consultation (in addition to the
specific relocation of East Barnet Library consultation) were not asked about their gender identity. It is not
envisaged that the relocation of the library would specifically impact individuals with this protected characteristic.

General considerations
The modelled data suggests that library usage by men and women broadly mirrors the profile of the borough
overall, approximately 47.9% and 52.1% respectively. However, in the 2014/15 consultation, women were over
represented as a proportion of respondents to the main questionnaire making up 64.4% of respondents.
In the 2014/15 consultation there was limited difference in responses between male and female respondents
however some gender differences emerged in response to the 2011 consultation. Particularly relevant to this

48

8

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

proposal, women were more likely than men to cite parking as a problem. Parking could be particularly
important for pregnant women or those with young children. The proposed new leisure centre will have
considerably greater parking availability than at the current library location therefore this could provide a
benefit to this protected group.

There may be limited impact on pregnant women or parents with young children as a result of relocating
the library. Some may currently walk to the library and, depending on where they walk from, the proposed
future location may be out of walking distance.
What action has been taken already to mitigate this?





There will be considerably greater parking provision at the proposed future library, co-located with
leisure facilities.
As part of the Sport and Physical Activity programme, residents were consulted on proposed future
locations for the Church Farm leisure centre in addition to wider analysis (including transport
analysis) being undertaken to decide on the preferred option of the Victoria Recreation Ground. This
proposed location has good public transport access, there are a number of bus routes and a train
station within a 10-15 minute walk. The number 384 bus stops outside the front of the proposed new
leisure facility.
Parents of young children may want to make use of multiple facilities co-located in one centre in
addition to the facilities offered by the surrounding park, including a new children’s playground.

What action do you plan to take to mitigate this?
Action

By when

period
During consultation and prior to relocating the library (should it go ahead), the Consultation
(Oct
–
Dec
2016)
public transport links will be widely displayed in the library.
Prior to relocation in
2019

5. Race /

Yes

/

General considerations

49

9

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

Ethnicity

No

In general there is an under-representation of ethnic minority groups who are library users compared to the
wider ethnic profile of the borough, and the data suggests there is no ethnic group who are significantly
over-represented in library users compared to the borough’s population.
Certain areas within the borough have a higher proportional Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) population
than the Borough average. Based on the 2011 Census, Colindale, Burnt Oak and West Hendon all have
populations where BAME residents make up over half of the population, whereas, High Barnet, Garden Suburb
and East Barnet all have the lowest BAME populations (less than 25%). Based on this data, relocating East
Barnet Library 0.9miles north of its current location is unlikely to significantly impact this protected group of
residents.

6. Religion or Yes
No
belief

/

General considerations
In summary, overall the pattern of library use by Christian, Buddhist, Hindu, Sikh, Muslim and Jewish .
residents broadly reflects the profile of the population.
Modelled data suggests that the pattern of individual library use, broadly reflects the geographical location
of particular communities. For example:


Jewish residents are heavier users of Edgware (32.1%), Golders Green (40.4%), Hendon (26.3%)
and Mill Hill (21.3%) according to modelled data. This matches the wards with the highest Jewish
population, Garden Suburb (38.2%) Golders Green (37.1%), Edgware (32.6%), Hendon (31.4%) and
Finchley Church End (31.2%).



Muslim residents are relatively heavy users of Burnt Oak (16.5%) and Childs Hill (15%) libraries.
This closely matches the wards which according to the 2011 census have the highest Muslim
population, Colindale (19.3%), Burnt Oak (18.4%) and Childs Hill (14.2%).

Wards situated in the North / Eastern areas of Barnet tend to have the highest proportions of Christians
compared to other areas of the borough therefore this group are likely to impacted more than other religious
groups by this proposal of relocation. Other than a relatively small change in geographical location (albeit within
the same ward), there should be no other change to the service offered by this library as a result of this proposal
therefore it is not envisaged to have substantial impact on any one group of residents with specific beliefs.

7. Gender /

Yes

/

General considerations

50

10

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

sex

No

The modelled data suggests that library usage by men and women broadly mirrors the profile of the
borough overall, with approximately 47.9% usage by men and 52.1% usage by women (compared to
estimates that 51.5% of the borough are female and 48.5% male).
The relocation of East Barnet Library is unlikely to have a differential impact on either male or female library
users.
General considerations

8. Sexual
orientation

Yes
No

/

9. Marital
Status

Yes
No

/

No specific differential impact identified for the general principles of change to the service (library
relocation)

10. Other key
groups?

Yes
No

/

Unemployed people

No specific differential impact identified for the general principles of change to the service (library
relocation).

(Unemployment is not one of the protected characteristics for the purposes of the public sector equality
duty in the Equality Act 2010.) Unemployed people are one of the groups identified as having particular
requirements from libraries by Sue Charteris’s inquiry into the Wirral libraries strategy (Charteris, 2009).
Relocating the library may impact those users who are unemployed if they currently live within walking
distance of the current library. Whilst the proposed future location is less than 1 mile from the current site,
for some this distance may be prohibitive for them to travel on foot.
There is however likely to be a benefit of relocating the library to those who are unemployed and live in the
vicinity of the proposed new site where there is currently no library provision.

People from areas of high deprivation
(Deprivation is not one of the protected characteristics for the purposes of the public sector equality duty in
the Equality Act 2010.)
Barnet has relatively low levels of deprivation, although there are exceptions to this particularly in the west
of the Borough where Burnt Oak and Colindale are located in the top 20% of deprived areas nationally.
Comparatively, East Barnet and surrounding wards have relatively low levels of deprivation therefore it is
not anticipated that people from areas of high deprivation will be negatively impacted by the proposed
library relocation.

Students in full time education
51

11

Equality Impact Assessment - Form – March 2016

(Being a student is not one of the protected characteristics for the purposes of the public sector equality
duty in the Equality Act 2010.)
No specific differential impact identified for the general principles of change to the service (library
relocation).

52

12

ASCH- Equality Analysis - Form – November 2013

2.

Equality Improvement Plan

The Equality Improvement plan will comprise of the mitigating actions set out above. The
actions will be delivered to the timeline set out above. The effect of the measures will be
reviewed after 12 months of the implementation of the proposals to assess whether the
mitigating actions have had the intended impact.
3.

What will be the impact of delivery of any proposals on satisfaction ratings
amongst different groups of residents?

Satisfaction ratings may drop for some residents who have expressed a dislike towards the
proposal to relocate the library. In the public consultation, 52 individuals responded to the
questionnaire with 62 attending face to face drop in sessions (some may have attended dropin sessions as well as responding to the questionnaire). The response was mixed with 23 out
of 52 supporting the proposal in the questionnaire and 32 out of 61 comments recorded at the
drop-in sessions being supportive of the proposal.
4.

How does the proposal enhance Barnet’s reputation as a good place to work and
live?

The proposal aims to co-locate the library with well used leisure facilities on a single site in
New Barnet. Current trends show a national decline in library usage, with the decline in usage
at East Barnet being significantly higher than the average across all libraries in Barnet.
Locating the library alongside leisure facilities should encourage greater usage of the service
in addition to reducing the cost of running the library in a large, stand-alone building. The
library would be housed in new, fit-for-purpose facilities that are fully accessible to residents
with disabilities.
5.

How will members of Barnet’s diverse communities feel more confident about the
council and the manner in which it conducts its business?

A thorough consultation was undertaken in the impacted area of the borough with
approximately 4000 addresses sent letters promoting the consultation and how to get involved.
Face-to-face drop-in sessions were undertaken both at the current library site and in popular
community locations near the proposed future location. Drop-in sessions were undertaken at a
number of different times to ensure they were inclusive for all to attend if desired.
The Council has taken into account the responses from the consultation questionnaires and
the drop-in sessions in making the recommendation to relocate the library. As expected,
response to the consultation was mixed, however when considering all the benefits to
relocation and the mitigation strategies that will be put in place for those who currently access
the library and find the future distance prohibitive it was decided that relocating the library
provides the best value for money and opportunity for a longer-term, sustainable library facility.
6.

What measures and methods have been designed to monitor the application of the
policy or service, the achievement of intended outcomes and the identification of
any unintended or adverse impact?
*

53

Satisfaction with the library service will continue to be monitored through an annual satisfaction
survey and usage will be monitored with people counters in addition to borrower numbers
7.

How have residents with different needs been consulted on the anticipated impact
of this proposal? How have any comments influenced the final proposal?

A consultation was undertaken for 8 weeks from 24th October – 19th December 2016. In
addition to an online questionnaire, 6 face-to-face drop-in sessions were held with officers.
Three drop-in sessions were held at East Barnet Library, two at the community centre in New
Barnet and one at St James Church in New Barnet. This ensured that both current users of the
library in addition to those who would potentially use the library in its proposed future location
were consulted with.
Due to the area-specific nature of this proposal, the consultation was promoted through a letter
drop to approximately 4000 addresses in the areas surrounding both the current and proposed
future location. It was also promoted in the library, the community centre and St James Church
as well as through social media (twitter and facebook).

8.

The equalities impact of the proposals

Whilst there are potential benefits to some groups there are also potential adverse impacts on
other groups some of which may be significant. See analysis in section 1 above for detail.

9.

Please give full explanation for how the Equalities Impact Assessment was
completed

The Equalities Impact Assessment has been informed by information collated from a variety of
sources including the needs assessment and the extensive resident engagement undertaken
from October to December 2016.
Overall the equalities impact of this proposal is assessed as minimum negative. The impact of
the proposal will continue to be monitored.

14

54

AGENDA ITEM 8

Policy & Resources Committee
10 January 2017

Title

London Boroughs Grants Scheme –
Borough Contributions, 2017/18

Report of Director of Resources
Wards All
Status Public
Urgent Yes
Key No
Enclosures None
Officer Contact Details

Patricia Phillipson, Head of Finance, Finance, Commissioning
Group (patricia.phillipson@barnet.gov.uk) (020 8359 2800)

Summary
This report considers the proposals of the London Councils Leaders’ Committee regarding
the overall level of expenditure of, and borough contributions to, the London Boroughs
Grants Scheme (LBGS) in 2017/18. Formal approval to the 2017/18 LBGS budget by at
least 22 of the constituent boroughs is required before 27 January 2017.

Recommendations
(1) That the recommendation of the London Councils Leaders’ Committee for an
overall level of expenditure of £8,899,000 in 2017/18, involving total borough
contributions of £7,668,152 and a levy on Barnet of £335,671, be approved.
(2) That the Director of Resources be instructed to inform the Chief Executive of
London Councils accordingly.

55

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

Formal approval to the 2017/18 LBGS budget by at least 22 of the constituent
boroughs is required before 27 January 2017.

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

The budget reflects how the LBGS has been reconfigured, with the approval
of constituent authorities, since 2011/12, pursuant to the significant cuts in
public sector spending. The recommendation acknowledges the satisfactory
performance of currently commissioned services.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

In the event that the budget is not agreed by this statutory deadline, the
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government has powers to
intervene and set the budget at the same level as in 2016/17 (£10,486,000).

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

The Chief Executive of London Councils will be notified of the council’s
decision in compliance with the deadline set.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The council is committed to working in partnership with the voluntary and
community sector (and with other public agencies and local businesses) to
ensure that high quality public services are delivered in the most effective and
efficient way in line with the Corporate Plan.
5.1.2 The LBGS was established in 1985 under section 48 of the Local Government
Act 1985 to make grants to pan-London and sub-regional voluntary
organisations. The scheme remains in force so long as a majority of London
boroughs continue to support it.
5.1.3 Section 48(3) of the 1985 Act requires constituent councils to contribute
towards any expenditure of the designated authority in the making of grants
which has been incurred with the approval of at least a two-thirds majority of
the councils.
5.1.4 With the consent of constituent authorities, the City Corporation succeeded
the London Borough of Richmond upon Thames as the appointed designated
authority for the LBGS in 2004, involving the discharge of certain formal
requirements such as issuing the annual levy on boroughs. In all practical
56

respects, however, the scheme is administered by London Councils.
2010 Review of Future Role and Scope of LBGS
5.1.5 In 2010, following a review of the future role and scope of the LBGS set
against cuts in public sector spending, the London Councils Leaders’
Committee agreed the principles for a future grants scheme based on funding
a genuinely London-wide programme embracing services that are frontline,
specialist or where mobility of clients is key to delivery; infrastructure support
to service providers; voice/representation services; and capacity building.
5.1.6 It was decided that all pan-London commissioned services would continue to
be funded to the end of their funding agreement in 2012/13. Funding for all
services categorised as essentially local in nature, but either more suited to
sub-regional decision-making and delivery or capable of local determination
and priority, ceased in 2011/12.
5.1.7 Some of the decisions, mainly concerning the categorisation of grantsupported activities, were subsequently revised in 2011 following a High Court
ruling on a judicial review claim that the consultation process on the changes
was flawed, as a consequence of which the decommissioning of services was
delayed. The need for a supplementary levy on boroughs towards rebalancing the LBGS budget in 2011/12 ultimately resulted in a saving to
Barnet on the levy payable of £526,527.
5.1.8 A 39.8% reduction in the LBGS budget for 2012/13 resulted in a further saving
to Barnet on the levy payable of £107,250.
5.1.9 In May 2012, following consultation with boroughs and other stakeholders, the
Leaders’ Committee agreed the principles and priorities to be applied in
selecting commissions through the LBGS to start from April 2013, based on
commissioning fewer, but better resourced, services and only those that are
genuinely pan-London. The priorities are:


to tackle homelessness, including developing new ways of working with
partners, focused on early intervention and prevention of homelessness,
emergency accommodation and advice services;



to prevent sexual and domestic violence and assist victims to access
emergency services and/or services that support women and communities
affected by forced marriage and harmful practice;



to tackle poverty by promoting access to employment and training,
drawing on opportunities for match funding provided by boroughs working
with London Councils and the European Social Fund (ESF);



to help London’s voluntary and community sector to build capacity and
operate more efficiently.

5.1.10 These commissioning priorities broadly reflected the council’s views in
57

response to the consultation, although it ranked homelessness as a lower
priority compared to the other three.
5.1.11 A total of 35 commissions were agreed for a four-year period, extending to 31
March 2017, under the four new priorities.

2016/17 LBGS budget
5.1.12 The LBGS has an overall budget of £10,486,000 in 2016/17 to meet the cost
of the commissions, which is met from:
Borough subscriptions
ESF income
Transfer from reserves

£
9,000,000
1,000,000
486,000

2017/18 LBGS budget
5.1.13 The Leaders’ Committee on 6 December 2016 agreed to recommend to
constituent authorities for approval an overall level of expenditure of
£8,899,000 for 2017/18, made up of:
£
Payments to Commissions
8,053,000
Administrative Expenditure
555,000
London Funders Membership Fees
60,000
Support to the 3rd sector via City Bridge Trust
75,000
A gross repayment to boroughs from reserves
156,000
5.1.14 It is proposed that the budget would be met as follows:
European Social Fund grant
Borough contributions
Transfer from uncommitted Grants Committee reserves

£
1,000,000
7,668,000
231,000

Barnet’s apportionment of the levy on the basis of population data (see 5.2.1
below) will be 4.38% in 2017/18 which will result in a Barnet contribution of
£335,671, a reduction of £59,503 on the 2016/17 levy.
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

5.2.1 The annual payment to the LBGS is a levy under section 74 of the Local
Government Finance 1988 and regulations made under it. Individual borough
contributions are determined by total resident population of the respective
58

boroughs, based on Office of National Statistics (formerly OPCS) mid-year
estimates for the year two years before the start of the financial year for which
the levy is issued.
5.2.2 The levy on Barnet has fallen in each of the last six years from £1,145,489 in
2010/11 to £395,174 in 2016/17, if disregarding the one off payment of
£21,339, resulting in a recurrent annual saving of £750,315 for 2016/17. The
surplus resulting from this reduction has been placed in an earmarked
reserve.
5.2.3 The current reserve has a balance of £2,015,663 arising from accumulated
surpluses that have resulted from a reduced levy since 2011/12 after taking
account of £80,000 used in 2011/12 to top up the Children’s Positive Activities
Programme; the allocation of £125,000 for capital play schemes in two parks
in 2012/13; the use of £29,228 to underwrite a shortfall in the budget for
community advice services, also in 2012/13; and the drawdown in 2013/14 of
£250,000 to fund a three-year grant to Avenue House Estate Trust (extending
to March 2016) towards capital improvements to the outbuildings and
grounds.
5.2.4 Based on mid-year 2015 population estimates, when Barnet’s population was
379,690 (compared to 374,920 in mid-2014), Barnet’s contribution to the
LBGS in 2017/18 will be 4.38% of total borough contributions.
5.2.5 Provision for the level of contribution to the LBGS, as finally approved, will be
included in the draft 2017/18 revenue budget, which will be presented to the
Policy and Resources Committee on 23 February 2017. If the LBGS budget
put forward is approved, Barnet’s contribution in 2017/18 will increase the
recurrent annual saving by £59,503 to £809,818.
5.2.6 Approval of the budget will mean that borough contributions to the LBGS will
have reduced since 2010/11 from £24,900,000 to £7,668,152, a reduction of
£17,231,848 or 69%.
5.3

Legal and Constitutional References

5.3.1 Council Constitution, Responsibility for Functions sets out the terms of
reference of Policy and Resources Committee, including ‘Ensuring effective
Use of Resources and Value for Money’ and ‘To be responsible for those
matters not specifically allocated to any other committee affecting the affairs
of the Council’.
5.4

Risk Management

5.4.1 The council is bound by law to contribute towards the costs incurred by the
designated authority in the making of grants under the LBGS according to the
formula set out above. In the event of the scheme being discontinued,
constituent authorities would be required to contribute to its winding up costs,
both in relation to grant commitments made and the closing of the unit that
administers the scheme. These have not been quantified.
59

5.4.2 If the LBGS budget for 2017/18 is not agreed by two-thirds of constituent
councils before 27 January 2017, the budget will be set at the same level as
in 2016/17 (£10,486,000).
5.5

Equalities and Diversity

5.5.1 Under section 149 of the Equality Act 2010, the council and all other
organisations exercising public functions must have due regard to the need to:




eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by or under the Act;
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it;
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant protected
characteristic and persons who do not share it

The relevant protected characteristics are age; disability; gender
reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; and sex and
sexual orientation.
The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate
considerations of equality into daily business and keep them under review in
decision making; the design of policies; and the delivery of services.
5.5.2 An analysis by London Councils in accordance with the duties under the Act
identified that a refocusing of the grants programme to reflect the reduced
resources available in the context of the significant spending constraints
facing local authorities would have an impact on protected groups of people.
The principles and priorities of the existing programme, and the service
specifications and strands to deliver outcomes, seek to apply scare resources
to mitigate, where possible, any adverse equality impacts arising from a
refocused programme operating with a reduced budget.
5.6

Consultation and Engagement
Continuation of LBGS beyond March 2017

5.6.1 In July 2015, London Councils launched a consultation exercise on whether or
not the grants programme should continue past March 2017 and, if it does,
what the priorities of the programme should be from April 2017.
5.6.2 The council in its response acknowledged the value of the LBGS in funding
organisations that supported niche groups which would lack sufficient scale if
resourced locally, but expressed concern about how effectively the scheme is
promoted within and between boroughs and that many of the commissioned
services do not benefit Barnet residents to any significant degree. Many of
the organisations supported operate predominantly in central London and the
disproportionate benefit that inner London boroughs with smaller populations
receive amounts to a redistribution of wealth from outer London.
5.6.3 The response stated that there is a need to take account of how many
60

expensive problems have migrated outwards to the suburbs, issues that the
council is addressing sub-regionally through the West London Alliance, the
Central and North West London NHS and the North London Housing SubRegion. It is considered that sub-regional programmes tend to be better
aligned to local need than those commissioned at the pan-London level.
5.6.4 In the view of Barnet commissioners working on the LBGS priority areas, the
council could achieve better outcomes by redeploying the levy locally.
Although it would not necessarily wish to withdraw from all activities funded
through the LBGS, its overall view given the nature of the consultation which
posed a single question about the future of the programme was that it should
not continue after March 2017.
5.6.5 The consultation, which ran to October 2015, and other evidence signified a
majority view that acting collectively to address London-wide priorities has
been effective; provided value for money; and delivered positive outcomes for
people with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010. A majority
of stakeholders expressed support for continuation of a pan-London grants
programme operating in accordance with the current principles.
5.6.6 Against the backdrop of further announcements about the funding position of
local authorities over the next five years in the Chancellor of the Exchequer’s
comprehensive spending review on 25 November, the Leaders’ Committee on
8 December was minded to indicate that it was unlikely that the fourth existing
priority focused on capacity building of the third sector could be considered as
a priority for the grants programme going forward.
5.6.7 Further consultation with stakeholders (extending to 22 January 2016) seeks
to help shape the commissioning priorities from April 2017 having regard to a
revised analysis of the equalities impacts of the existing grants programme in
the light of the initial consultation responses. This follow-up consultation will
further inform consideration of the equalities implications of potential changes
to the programme and future budgetary decisions.
6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1.1 Urgency Committee, 29 January 2015, London Boroughs Grants Scheme –
Borough
Contributions,
2015/16,
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s22175/Annex%201%20%20Report%20to%20Urgency%20Committee.pdf
6.1.2 Grants Committee, Grants Programme 2017-21, 13 July 2016
6.1.3 Leaders’ Committee, Grants Programme 2017-21, 22 March 2016
6.1.4 Grants Committee, Grants Programme 2017-21, 9 March 2016
6.1.5 London Councils Grants Additional Consultation 2017/21 (including equalities
impact assessment) December 2015 – January 2016
61

6.1.6 London Councils Grants Consultation 2017/21 (including equalities impact
assessment) July – October 2015
6.1.7 Leaders’ Committee, Item 9 - Review of Delivery of a London Grants
Programme – 8 December 2015
6.1.8 Grants Committee, Review of London Councils Grants Programme, Item 8, 18
November 2015 (including equalities impact assessment)
6.1.9 Council, 26 January 2016, London Boroughs Grants Scheme – Borough
Contributions,
2016/17,
http://barnet.moderngov.co.uk/documents/s28994/London%20Boroughs%20
Grants%20Scheme%20-%20Borough%20Contributions%20201617.pdf

62

AGENDA ITEM 9

Policy and Resources Committee
10 January 2017

Title

Policy and Resources Committee
Work Programme

Report of Interim Chief Executive
Wards All
Status Public
Enclosures Committee Work Programme: December 2016

Officer Contact Details

Kirstin Lambert: kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk
020 8359 2177

Summary
The Committee is requested to consider and comment on the items included in the 201617 work programme

Recommendations
1. That the Committee consider and comment on the items included in the 201617 work programme

63

1.

WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED

1.1

The Policy and Resources Committee’s Work Programme 2016-17 indicates
forthcoming items of business.

1.2

The work programme of this Committee is intended to be a responsive tool,
which will be updated on a rolling basis following each meeting, for the
inclusion of areas which may arise through the course of the year.

1.3

The Committee is empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own
schedule of work within the programme.

2.

REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS

2.1

There are no specific recommendations in the report. The Committee is
empowered to agree its priorities and determine its own schedule of work
within the programme.

3.

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED

3.1

N/A

4.

POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION

4.1

Any alterations made by the Committee to its Work Programme will be
published on the Council’s website.

5.

IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION

5.1

Corporate Priorities and Performance

5.1.1 The Committee Work Programme is in accordance with the Council’s strategic
objectives and priorities as stated in the Corporate Plan 2015-20.
5.2

Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT,
Property, Sustainability)

5.2.1 None in the context of this report.
5.3

Legal and Constitutional References

5.3.1 The Terms of Reference of the Policy and Resources Committee is included
in the Constitution, Responsibility for Functions, Annex A.
5.4

Risk Management

5.4.1 None in the context of this report.
5.5

Equalities and Diversity

5.5.1 None in the context of this report.
64

5.6

Consultation and Engagement

5.6.1 None in the context of this report.
6.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

6.1

None

65

This page is intentionally left blank

London Borough of Barnet
Policy and Resources
Committee work programme
December 2016 - April 2017

Contact: Kirstin Lambert; 02083592177 kirstin.lambert@barnet.gov.uk

67

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Council Motion (4 April
2016) - Impact of the
EU Referendum on
Barnet

Following Council resolution of 4 April
2016, the committee will consider the
impact of the result of the EU
Referendum on Barnet.

Interim Chief Operating Officer

Non-key

Customer
Transformation
Programme

This report seeks approval for the
establishment of a programme of
work to implement the
recommendations of the Customer
Access Strategy (CAS).

Director of Strategy, Innovation and
Customer Services

Key

Sustainable Design and
Construction and Draft
Residential Design
Guidance
Supplementary
Planning Documents

The refocused SPD’s capture
changes on space standards as well
as new standards that address
accessibility, security, energy, noise,
air pollution and water conservation.
The Residential Design SPD cross
references these changes and also
clarifies the approach to conversions
including small HMO conversions. It
is recommended these documents
are considered for adoption following
consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

IT Strategy

To note the council’s IT Strategy
2015-2020.

5 October 2016

Non-key

68

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Business Planning Efficiency Plan
Submission

To approve the ‘Efficiency Plan’ for
submission to the Department for
Communities and Local Government
(DCLG).

Director of Resources (Deputy Section
151 Officer)

Non-key

Business Planning
updates 2016-17

To approve virements to and from the
contingency fund.

Director of Resources (Deputy Section
151 Officer)

Non-key

Business Planning

To approve the Business Planning
priorities for the period 2016/17 to
2019/20.

Director of Resources (Deputy Section
151 Officer), Interim Chief Operating
Officer

Non-key

Annual Procurement
Forward Plan [APFP]
2017/2018

Approve the Annual Procurement
Forward Plan 2017-18.

Interim Chief Operating Officer

Key

Diving Feasibility Study
(Barnet Copthall
Leisure Centre)

A feasibility study reviewing the
inclusion of diving in the facility mix at
the redeveloped Copthall Leisure
Centre.

Commissioning Director (Adults and
Health)

Key

Disabled Persons
Freedom Pass Review

To receive the outcomes from the
consultation, proposed appeals
procedure and a progress update on
the introduction of the revised criteria.

Commissioning Director Environment

Key

1 December 2016

69

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Pentavia retail park

To consider adoption of Pentavia
retail park planning brief following
consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

Short term Extension of
the Barnet Group
Management oversight
for Streetscene

Report to extend The Barnet Group
senior management oversight of the
Street Scene Delivery Unit (DU) to
align with the Streetscene ADM.

Commissioning Director Environment

Key

North Finchley Town
Centre Area Framework
SPD

Authorisation to prepare a draft
Supplementary Planning Document
(SPD) for North Finchley Town
Centre Area Framework, to come
back to Policy and Resources
Committee for approval for
consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Key

North Central London
(NCL) Sustainability
and Transformation
Plan (STP)

The Committee is asked to comment
on Barnet’s roles and contribution to
the developments across North
Central London (NCL).

Commissioning Directior Adults and
Health

Non-key

Motion referred from
Council - Opposition
Motion in the name of
Cllr Arjun Mittra

To consider a motion referred from
Council on Royal British Legion
"Count Them In" Campaign: Making
the next census count for our Armed
Forces community.

Head of Governance

Non-key

70

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Future library provision
in New Barnet Area

Following consultation, to consider
re-providing East Barnet Partnership
Library as part of the proposed new
leisure facilities in Victoria Park, due
to be completed in 2019, subject to
planning consent

Commissioning Director, Children and
Young People

Non-key

The London Boroughs
Grants Scheme

To seek approval to the London
Boroughs Grants Scheme’s budget
and the levy on them for 2017/18.

Director of Resources (Deputy Section
151 Officer)

Non-key

10 January 2017

23 February 2017
The Way we Work
programme: Full
Business Case for
electronic document
management, Office
365 and Unified
Communication
Solutions

Approval of the full business case to
implement a new approach to EDM,
Office 365 and UC using allocated
capital budget.

Non-key

71

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Corporate Enforcement
and Prosecution Policy

The proposed corporate policy will
ensure there is a consistent approach
to enforcement and prosecution by
the council and any other
organisation delivering
regulatory/enforcement services on
behalf of the council. Therefore
ensuring Council compliance with the
Cabinet Office Enforcement
Concordat and the Statutory Code for
Regulators introduced in 2014.

Commissioning Director Environment

Non-key

Business Planning
2015/16 to 2019/20

The report revises the Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) in line with
the publication, sets out the corporate
plan indicators, savings proposals,
capital programme for the period
2017-20 and council tax for 2017/18.

Director of Resources (Deputy Section
151 Officer), Interim Chief Operating
Officer

Non-key

North London Waste
Plan (Reg 19 stage)

To approve the North London Waste
Plan (NLWP) for public consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

Golders Green Station
Planning Brief adoption

To approve the planning brief
following consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

Final Corporate Plan Addendum 2017-18

To approve the Corporate Forward
Plan addendum.

Chief Operating Officer (Director of
Finance / Section 151 Officer)

Non-key

72

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Draft Green
Infrastructure
Supplementary
Planning Document

To approve the draft Supplementary
Planning Document for Green
Infrastructure for consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

Draft Affordable
Housing Supplementary
Planning Document

To approve the draft Supplementary
Planning Document for Affordable
Housing for consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Non-key

The Barnet Group
(TBG) Business Plan

To approve the budget and business
plan of the Barnet Group Ltd.

Interim Chief Operating Officer

Non-key

To approve Barnet’s Local Plan for
consultation.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Key

To adopt the Supplementary
Planning Document for Affordable
Housing.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Key

21 March 2017

16 May 2017
27 June 2017
The Local Plan

Items to be allocated
Affordable Housing
Supplementary
Planning Document Adoption

73

Title of Report

Overview of decision

Report Of (officer)

Issue Type (Non
key/Key/Urgent)

Green Infrastructure
Supplementary
Planning Document Adoption

To adopt the Supplementary
Planning Document for Green
Infrastructure.

Commissioning Director, Growth and
Development

Key

74

